
Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA  

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina at 2:32 p.m. on 
Tuesday, January 14, 2025. 
 

ATTENDANCE 

 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman  

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin,  
Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell,  
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Dena R. Diorio 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  Commissioner Vilma D. Leake 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  

 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, followed by introductions and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
 
  
25-0060 UPDATE ON WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Board received an update on Workforce Development. 
 
Background:  The Board will receive an update on Workforce Development. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

 
 
 
Comments 
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked, referencing the talent pool, if there was an opportunity 
for tracks, such as automotive tracks. She asked if there was a survey after a person used the 
site. She asked if there was a way to ask what their minimal experience was so that people did 
not feel as if they wasted their time applying for a job they were not qualified for. She asked if 
minimal experience or education could be used in lieu of one another. Ms. London said that 
with CMS, the Deputy Superintendent was on their board of directors and was working closely 
with them with the Education to Employment Pathway. She said it was part of their industry-led 
commitment to creating the tracks/pathways. She said there was a phone number –  one for job 
seekers that got them to triage if they needed help with the site. She said she met with the City 
and County Economic Development about potentially dedicating an economic development 
team member to work within a workforce development capacity. She also added that they sent 
jobseekers a quarterly survey to ask about their experience.  
 
Commissioner Griffin said he was excited and impressed with her enthusiasm. He said they had 
the best intentions and potential but forgot about accountability. He said he was concerned 
because it sounded excellent but asked how their accountability to execution was. He said he 
had reached out to the Census Bureau, and in 2023, over 11,000 people migrated to 
Mecklenburg County, and 8,700 of those were international. He asked her to help them help 
her interrupt the system. Ms. London said she would report back to him. She said that in her 
meeting with Economic Development, they talked about those things, and in the past, they 
never really talked about bridging the gap. She said they had never collaborated on truly 
tangible activities when it came to bridging the gap and talent sourcing, and she said changes 
were coming.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell thanked her. She asked if there was anything about wages 
tied to the program and if they were committing to a living wage. She asked if the jobs were of 
a vertical nature – at the entry level and other levels as well. She asked if the program was 
regional or only in Mecklenburg County. Ms. London said that regarding wages/career 
pathways, they looked at industry-led/sponsored jobs and reasonable, realistic, and appropriate 
wages. She gave the example of being a CNA and transitioning to an RN and the difficulty of 
making the transition if it was not supported by the individual’s company. She said they were 
discussing everything to see what it looked like from business to business and across industries. 
She said the career maps on LinkedIn were across the Charlotte Metro area.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said she appreciated how she pulled it all together.  



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

 
Commissioner Powell asked if LinkedIn was the only way. She asked how they were able to find 
microbusinesses to participate in it. She said that with wages, it would be difficult for the 
microbusinesses to commit to livable wages. She said she agreed with Commissioner Griffin, 
saying the County's investment needed to benefit the County. Ms. London said the idea was to 
be able to make revisions. She said the goal was to launch it and make it better. She mentioned 
that the assessment was for people who needed more help. She said that with microbusinesses, 
Charlotte Works partnered with the Business Advisory Committee, The Alliance, and other 
significant partners and conducted outreach. She said they contacted the Department of 
Commerce to see who was registered as microbusinesses. She said their business services team 
also sought networking opportunities for small and micro businesses. She said not all of the 
businesses were able to afford livable wages, but they welcome all kinds of businesses.  
 
Commissioner Meier thanked her. She asked if there were partnerships with The Pearl and 
Siemens, if they could refer them, and if they were looking for a program like the one 
presented. Ms. London said they had a relationship with Siemens and were having 
conversations with The Pearl. She said that as Siemens expanded, they did support them with 
getting individuals into specific roles.  
 
Commissioner Meier asked if there was an actual person at the end to assist with the overall 
process. Ms. London said there were people in place to assist throughout the program.  
 
Vice Chair Altman thanked her. She said they had to remember why they were doing it all. She 
said one in three Mecklenburg County residents was either Medicaid eligible or had received 
Medicaid services. She said she took that as a challenge and that the numbers were far too high 
of neighbors who needed support to get by. She said the goal of “closing the job skills gap” was 
good and commendable but too limited. She asked what their talent pipeline was other than 
CPCC. She said she wasn’t clear if that vision was on top of the talent pipeline to attract great 
employers. She said the conversation in the room about Atrium was concerning, as she 
remembered them making a promise to the County after providing them with economic 
incentive to build The Pearl. She said they were promised jobs for their residents. 
 
Ms. London said the first step over the last year was to pull together priorities and avoid 
duplication. She said the next phase was to pull together educational institutions that were 
above this bucket. She said economic and workforce development hadn’t been working together 
as collaboratively, and that was something they were working on. She said there was more to 
come, and it was larger than just bringing people together. She said they had to have a pulse of 
where the talent was.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said the data needed to be extracted, and people needed to 
be tracked from the beginning to where they were. She asked if there was a mechanism to do 
so. Ms. London said yes. She said anyone who accessed the system was tracked. She said 
tracking would be part of that, as well as moving forward with industry commitments over the 
next couple of months and building out pathways. 
 
Commissioner Griffin asked County Manager Diorio since they did things jointly a lot with the 
City on economic development—if there was any way they could talk to the City so the 
contracts could be similar and include similar language. County Manager Diorio said it was 
certainly possible. She mentioned that the City was involved with the current effort as well.  
 
Commissioner Powell said she wanted to advocate for human touch points. She said that when 
citizens needed something, they were more successful when they could get in touch with actual 
people.  
 
Vice Chair Altman said she wanted Ms. London and her board to expand their conversation on 
expanding the pipeline. She said she could not answer the question of what big sectors they 
were trying to attract in Mecklenburg County. She said she would like to see the business plan 



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

their board approved every 4 years and updated. She asked for the percentage of residents 
they had touch points with and what percentage resulted in jobs and salaries. She also asked 
for an invite to their September Summit and their March CELC (Charlotte Executive Leadership 
Council)  presentation. 
 
Chair Jerrell thanked her. He said it was clear it was a heavy lift. He said there were still 
question marks about execution and reaching the people they were concerned about. He said 
they needed to understand when it was fully operational. He asked what the pipeline looked 
like and, with the tool, whether they were providing them with additional resources while they 
were in transition of mobility. He said when they thought about the link between the portal and 
HR, he wanted to understand that people could get jobs with the County. He said it would be a 
miss if they funneled people to an HR department. He said they needed to get with, not just 
Atrium, but they needed to see where they were with many of their partners. He said they had 
much work to do. Ms. London said the job seeker portion was live. She said she would provide 
an update concerning the business side. She said they were working with Queens College, which 
connected all of the different navigators in the community.   
 
 
25-0058 EQUITY ACTION PLAN PROGRESS REPORT – OFFICE OF EQUITY AND INCLUSION 
 
 
The Board received an update on the FY2020-FY2023 Equity Action Plan implementation status 
progress summary, and future planning. 
 
LaShaun Carter, Chief Equity and Inclusion Officer 
Derrick Ramos, Deputy County Manager/Chief of Staff 
 
Background:  The Mecklenburg County Equity Action Plan (EAP) FY2020-FY2023 is the primary 
source for guiding all County Departments in implementing current equity best practices and 
aligning to county equity goals and strategies.  This presentation is to update the board on the 
end of phase one of our equity work and preview the future state of the work. 
 



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

Comments 
 
Commissioner Dunlap said that as companies started rolling back their DEI(Diversity, Equity, 
and Inclusion) plans, he wondered if they were doing it as a preventive measure or if they were 
being forced to do it by legislation. He asked if there was legislation and how it could impact 
them. Mr. Carter said that at the time, there wasn’t any legislation to roll back DEI. He said the 
Supreme Court ruling on affirmative action didn’t influence local governments and private 
entities. 
 
Commissioner Griffin said that in November, they voted on the opioid settlement; he asked 
who they were serving. He said they lost the opportunity to place an equity lens on Mr. Carter’s 
4th goal of health equity.  
 
Commissioner Powell asked him to repeat the information on psychological safety. Mr. Carter 
repeated his thoughts towards it. She said it was important because if someone was in the right 
space, they could make progress. She said her safe space for equity and inclusion was with 
Chair Jerrell.  
 
Commissioner Meier thanked him. She said she was proud that the County embraced the plan 
while watching so many other entities fall by the wayside, which was disappointing. She said 
Criminal Justice Strategy A wasn’t concrete but huge. Mr. Carter said that as they went into 
their next strategic period, they had an opportunity to review them.  
 
Commissioner Townsend-Ingram said she felt that she had to police her words and actions as a 
black woman in America. She asked what “teeth” the County had to not do business with 
entities that entertained DEI rollbacks. County Attorney Wade said they were bound by statute 
in how they contracted. He said the law laid out rules they had to follow.  
 
Vice Chair Altman said she would like to see more on the metrics of the goals. Mr. Carter said 
he would follow up with her. She mentioned how he said none of them were free until all of 
them were free.  
 
Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said she would like to see the actions and that she agreed 
with Vice Chair Altman. She said she appreciated the work he was doing and the Board for 
having those priorities.  
 
Chair Jerrell said it was important for the Board to know what their team members expected of 
them, and asked how they could help foster those conversations throughout the organization 
and how what they were doing was going to be transformational. He said it was important to 
the community, and they were the community's voice. Mr. Carter said they could improve now 
that the work had been done to make the information more digestible.  
 
 
 
24-0059  COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2025   

 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Jerrell declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:45p.m. 
 
 
 

            
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                                               Mark Jerrell, Chair 
 


